
 
Town of Swanzey Planning Board  Draft Minutes 
October 10, 2013 
Page 1 of 4 
 

 

 
 

Town of Swanzey, New Hampshire 
Swanzey Planning Board 

Meeting Minutes – October 10, 2013 
 

Note:  Draft Minutes are subject to review, correction and approval by the Board. Review and approval of Minutes 
generally takes place at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. 

 

The regular meeting of the Swanzey Planning Board was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chair Glenn 
Page.  Members present:  Scott Self, June Fuerderer, Jeff Goller, Joe Smith, Selectmen's Representative 
Ken Colby, Alternate Don Skiba, and Alternate Jane Johnson. The roll call and agenda for the meeting 
was read by Chair Page and Johnson    was seated for Lerandeau. 
 

Absent:  Gus Lerandeau 
 
Others Present:  Town Planner Sara Carbonneau, Chad Branon, P.E., Fieldstone Land Consultants, Mark 
Rountree, Attorney Silas Little, Resident Richard Cairns, and Resident Ralph Randall. 
 
Minutes:  Minutes from September 26, 2013 were reviewed. Motion was made by Fuerderer to accept 
the minutes. The motion was seconded by Goller.  All were in favor except Colby and Smith who 
abstained. Motion passed. 
 
Regional Impact: Board members considered whether any items on the agenda could be construed as 
having the potential for regional impact. Motion made by Fuerderer that no items on the agenda could 
be reasonably construed as having the potential for regional impact. Second by Smith, no further 
discussion, and all were in favor of the motion. Motion passed. 
 
A.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Site Plan Review Application 
Public Hearing opened at 6:01 p.m. 

1. Rountree Real Estate, LLC applied to construct a 950 square foot (subsequently amended to 
1,455 square feet) addition to the existing structure. The property is situated at 119 Monadnock 
Highway and shown at Tax Map 18, Lot 87-2 situated in the Business District. 
 
Chad E. Branon, PE, with Fieldstone Land Consultants, PLLC, represented Rountree Real Estate, 
LLC.  Branon presented a site plan for the addition.  He stated that the existing business is in 
need of additional storage.  Proposal is to extend existing building.  Currently area has no shrubs 
and is lawn that is mowed. There is a trailer in the area that will be removed. No parking 
associated with the proposed addition. Primary access will be internal. No impact to storm 
water, using existing storm water basin. No additional lighting, no trees being taken down. 
Richard Cairns on 26 Pasture Road said he is an abutter. He said he is not concerned so long as 
no trees are being taken down and no additional lighting will be required.  Branon went on to 



 
Town of Swanzey Planning Board  Draft Minutes 
October 10, 2013 
Page 2 of 4 
 

say that the propane tanks in the area will be relocated. Johnson asked how much space is left 
from the addition to the property line and was told by Branon that nine (9) feet would be left 
from edge of addition to the property line with no dumpster in the area. Carbonneau asked 
where the propane tanks might be relocated.  Mark Rountree said the tanks will probably be 
buried in an area to the south of the addition. Cairns asked Rountree about the 9 feet of land 
near his property line. He asked if there would be ladders stored there. Rountree said everything 
that was out back will be going into the addition.  Rountree also said that the area won’t be 
used as much since it will be accessed from the inside. Branon pointed out that there will be an 
outside doorway on the south end and will not be within the setback area (adjacent to the 
existing parking lot). Chair asked for questions. There were no further questions.   
Public hearing closed at 6:10 p.m. 
 
Self made a motion to accept modification of existing building at 119 Monadnock Highway and 
shown at Tax Map 18, Lot 87-2 for a 950 square foot (subsequently amended to 1,455 square 
feet) addition to the existing structure subject to relocation of the propane tanks in the area.  
The motion was seconded by Smith, and all were in favor. Motion passed. 
Modification was approved. 

 
B. APPLICATIONS 
The following application is being considered for completeness only.  Comments will be limited to the 
completeness of the application only. 
 

1. Site Plan Review Application – 
Zaremba Program Development, LLC wishes to construct a 9,100 square foot building to be used 
for retail sales.  The property is situated off West Swanzey Road and Cobble Hill Road, and is 
shown as proposed Lot 51-2 on Tax Map 72, situated in the Business District.  The property is 
owned by Stephen and Joan Pappas. 
 
Attorney Silas Little represented Zaremba Program Development, LLC and said that the plan is 
essentially the same as was presented in the past, but now the sidewalk is to be extended to the 
entire length of the Pappas parcel and the water supply has been confirmed. Little said that the 
plan does not currently show the sidewalk extension, but it will be shown with change on the 
existing sheet.  Carbonneau asked a question about the extent of the sidewalk.  Little said he 
understood from previous recorded minutes that the desire by the Planning Board was for 
sidewalk to go to the end of the Pappas property.  Little said he needed the Board’s clarification 
on this issue.  Chair Page said the subdivided parcel boundary line is the correct one.  A point 
was made that the subdivision was approved after the denial by the Planning Board.   
 
Ralph Randall, who is one of the abutting property owners, said that in the past a promise was 
made to him for sidewalk to extend all the way down South Winchester Street for kids to be 
able to walk along the property safely.  He contended that given the traffic, the area is not safe 
without a sidewalk.  Chair Page noted that this meeting was being held in consideration of the 
application’s completeness only and any other discussion should be held at the public hearing 
which would be forthcoming.  Randall also questions whether there would be any impact on the 
aquifer in the area, as most the homes have dug wells.  It is possible to interrupt the aquifer 



 
Town of Swanzey Planning Board  Draft Minutes 
October 10, 2013 
Page 3 of 4 
 

with construction.  But he said he would return to discuss these issues at the future public 
hearing. 
 
Carbonneau said that in the July 2012 minutes the Planning Board asked for a review of the 
sidewalk plans (extending the sidewalk northerly over land of Faulkner and Willard) and asked 
about extending the easement (along the entire southerly line of the proposed lot). Little said 
the only basis for the denial was the lack of sufficient water supply and he was covering that 
now.  Chair Page said that this is a new application as far as the Planning Board is concerned so 
all the issues will need to be addressed. 
 
Chair asked for questions regarding the completeness of the application. Johnson explained that 
the Planning Board decided on a new application, not a continuation of a previous application, 
which had been denied.  Little said he is pursuing an appeal with the Supreme Court of New 
Hampshire regarding the earlier denial.  
 
Self moved that the application from Zaremba Program Development, LLC  to construct a 9,100 
square foot building on property owned by Stephen and Joan Pappas for retail sales at West 
Swanzey Road and Cobble Hill Road as shown as proposed Lot 51-2 on Tax Map 72 and situated 
in the Business District is complete enough to go to public hearing. The motion was seconded by 
Fuerderer.  All were in favor. Motion passed. 
Public hearing to be held on October 24, 2013. 

 
Carbonneau said that the documentation pertinent to the previous application from Zaremba 
Program Development, LLC resides in her office, should members of the Planning Board want to 
review the materials prior to the October 24th public hearing.   

 

C.  DISCUSSIONS/OTHER BUSINESS - 

Carbonneau asked Selectmen's Representative Ken Colby about the road safety audit recently reviewed 
for the intersection of Route 32 and Sawyers Crossing Road. Colby reported that a letter will be sent to 
the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NH DOT) asking for more information and 
mentioning their concerns about plans for Simeneau Lane and its nearness to the proposed roundabout. 
And Access Management Study is being requested. Colby said he would have preferred to go with the 
number one recommendation which is a roundabout because it would slow traffic down and provide 
long term solution for the congested area. 
 
Goller said he can address the speed of cars passing by since he lives nearby.  Self said he doesn’t see 
how the roundabout will slow down speeds further away from the roundabout.  A discussion was held 
about the design of the roundabout and how traffic would deal with moving into the roundabout. Colby 
said there is often a problem with crosswalks if they are close to the roundabout. He said crosswalks 
built too near to a roundabout bottleneck the traffic when there are people in the crosswalks.  He gave 
an example of the crosswalks on Main Street in Keene near Keene State College. He went on to say that 
the crosswalks can be constructed further away from the roundabout. 
 
 



 
Town of Swanzey Planning Board  Draft Minutes 
October 10, 2013 
Page 4 of 4 
 

Motion to adjourn by Smith, seconded by Fuerderer, with all in favor.  Motion passed.  
Adjournment at  6:33p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Beverly Bernard, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 


